e e

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Please reply to:
Contact: Gillian Scott

Service: Committee Services

Direct line: 01784 444243

E-mail: g.scott@spelthorne.gov.uk
Date: 12 November 2019

Notice of meeting

Licensing Committee

Date: Wednesday, 20 November 2019
Time: 7.30 pm

Place: Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames TW18
1XB

To the members of the Licensing Committee

Councillors:

R.W. Sider BEM (Chairman) A. Brar K.M. Grant

A.J. Mitchell (Vice-Chairman) S. Buttar N. Islam

C.L. Barratt S.M. Doran J. Mcllroy

R.O. Barratt S.A. Dunn D. Saliagopoulos
|.J. Beardsmore N.J. Gething B.B. Spoor

Councillors are reminded that the Gifts and Hospitality Declaration book will be available
outside the meeting room for you to record any gifts or hospitality offered to you since the
last Committee meeting.

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB

www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499



http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk

AGENDA
Page nos.

Apologies
To receive any apologies for non-attendance.

Minutes 3-4

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 2019 as a
correct record.

Disclosures of Interest

To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance
with the Council's Code of Conduct for Members.

Review of the Taxi Licensing Policy 5-48

To consider the report of the Principal Licensing Officer on the review of
the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy following a
consultation period.

Work and Decisions of Licensing Sub-Committees 49 - 50

To note the work and decisions of Licensing Sub-Committees held since
4 September 2019.



Agenda Item 2

Minutes of the Licensing Committee
4 September 2019

Present:
Councillor R.W. Sider BEM (Chairman)
Councillor A.J. Mitchell (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

C.L. Barratt S.M. Doran J. Mcllroy
R.O. Barratt S.A. Dunn B.B. Spoor
|.J. Beardsmore N.J. Gething

S. Buttar K.M. Grant

Apologies: Councillor A. Brar

226/19 Minutes - 21 May 2019

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 21 May 2019 were agreed as a correct
record.

227/19 Disclosures of Interest

There were none.

228/19 Revision of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing
Policy

The following supporting documents were circulated to the Committee

immediately prior to the meeting and are attached to these minutes:

e Comparison between Spelthorne and Runnymede tinting criteria

e Runnymede’s tinted window consultation comments and

e Proposed amendment to paragraph 6.5 of the draft policy in relation to
tinted windows

The Principal Licensing Manager presented the draft Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire Licensing Policy prior to it undergoing a four-week consultation
period by the Taxi trade.

The Principal Licensing Manager explained that the Policy had been revised
in light of recent discussions by the Surrey Licensing Managers Forum. The
revisions were proposed to enable a consistent approach across Surrey which
would prevent prospective applicants from “shopping around” boroughs, and
also to promote the safety of the taxi-using public.

He summarised the key amendments to the Policy, which were:-

Page 3



Licensing Committee, 4 September 2019 - continued

the adoption of the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN)’s National
Register of Refusal and Revocations (NR3);

amendments to the criminal record checking process (via the
Disclosure & Barring Service [DBS));

provisions of wording to give clear direction in respect of applications
from app-based Private Hire Operations;

requirement for all Private Hire Operators (PHOs) and their controllers
to complete Barnardos’ safeguarding vulnerable adults & CSE online
training module;

requirement for all controllers working under the employ of PHOs to
submit basic DBS checks;

wording to address the discretion for LEOs to require aesthetic vehicle
faults to be rectified;

consideration to imposing restrictions on window tinting in licensed
vehicles;

the implementation of a joint warranting scheme in conjunction with
other Surrey authorities

The Principal Licensing Manager referred members to the late documents
relating to consideration of restrictions on tinted windows. The Committee
discussed the implications of imposing restrictions on tinted windows and
having regard to the comments from Surrey Police to the Runnymede
consultation, agreed that the cost to the Taxi trade was outweighed by the
benefits of safeguarding the public.

The Principal Licensing Manager responded to the Committee Members
questions and noted their comments for inclusion in the draft Policy.

Resolved to agree:

1.

the draft Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy for
consultation subject to inclusion of the amended Paragraph 6.5 on
tinted windows as tabled at the meeting;

the immediate implementation of the NAFN’s National Register of
Refusal and Revocations (NR3); and

to recommend to Council, that the Scheme of delegations be
amended to provide for the implementation of a joint warranting
scheme empowering Licensing Enforcement Officers (LEOs) from
other Surrey authorities to exercise common agreed enforcement
duties when vehicles are operating outside of the issuing authority.

Page 4



Agenda Item 4

Licensing Committee *_

20 November 2019 SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Title

Revision of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy

Purpose of the report

To make a decision

Report Author

Rob Thomas, Principal Licensing Officer

Cabinet Member

Councillor Richard Barratt Confidential | No

Corporate Priority

Clean and Safe Environment

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Licensing Committee approves the
revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, as
attached at Appendix A.

Reason for
Recommendation

Spelthorne Borough Council’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Licensing Policy (hereafter referred to as ‘the Policy’) was revised in
line with draft updates to the DFT’s best practice guidance.
Committee members agreed at their September 2019 meeting that
the revised Policy be consulted on and a public consultation was
carried out over the course of four weeks. Comments received have
been included within the body of this report and its appendices for
consideration.

1. Consultation

1.1 At the Licensing Committee held on 4" September 2019 members approved
an amended draft version of the Policy (attached as Appendix A) for

consultation.

1.2  The Policy was sent out to interested parties on 61" September 2019, with a
covering message advising that responses should be received by 4" October
2019. It was also published on Spelthorne’s website for consumption by the
wider public, and advertised via Spelthorne Licensing’s social media

channels.

1.3  During the consultation, comments were received from 17 interested parties.

2, Summary of key matters for consideration

Amendments to the Policy which the Council received comments on during
the course of the consultation are as follows: -

e amendments to the criminal record checking process (via the Disclosure and
Barring Service [DBS));

e provisions of wording to give clear direction in respect of applications from
app-based Private Hire Operations;

e requirement for all Private Hire Operators (PHOs) and their controllers to

Page 5




3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2
4.3

4.4

complete Barnardos’ safeguarding vulnerable adults and CSE online training
module;

consideration to imposing restrictions on window tinting in licensed vehicles;
and

the implementation of a joint warranting scheme in conjunction with other
Surrey authorities.

Comments received on the adoption of NAFN’s National Register of
Refusal and Revocations (NR3)

Although no comments were received about the adoption of the NR3, 14
drivers historically refused or revoked a Private Hire or Hackney Carriage
driver licence were written to in order to pre-emptively advise them that it was
Spelthorne Borough Council’s intention to put their data onto the register.

Of these 14 drivers: -
¢ three contacted the office with a view to re-applying,

e one queried whether it was really necessary for his details to be added
to the register and

e one formally objected in writing to the addition of his details.

The written objection is being considered by Spelthorne’s Legal department at
present.

The consensus from conversations with existing licensees is that the addition
of this measure is a welcome one.

Comments received on amendments to the criminal record checking
process (via the DBS)

A couple of drivers appeared to misunderstand proposed amendments to the
DBS criminal record checking process and highlighted that they did not think it
was fair for Spelthorne Borough Council to insist that licensees born overseas
return to their native embassy or high commission for subsequent checks
covering time spent living abroad before they entered the UK.

There is no mention of such a measure in the draft consultation document.

For clarity, no changes have been made to requirements for new applicants to
submit criminal record checks or certificates of good conduct from their native
embassy or high commission; and existing licensees who have already
complied with this requirement will not be obliged to do so again unless they
have subsequently lived abroad for a year or more during their licensable
tenure (as per page 5 of the existing policy).

Requiring all existing licensees to sign up to the DBS’ online update
subscription service as agreed in principle by the Committee in August will
have no impact on requirements for overseas criminal history checks.

Page 6



5.1

6.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Comments received on provisions to account for app-based Private Hire
Operations

One licensed operator utilised the consultation period as an opportunity to
express distaste for Uber’s operation. Uber are not presently licensed by
Spelthorne Borough Council and, in spite of contact with Spelthorne’s
Licensing Department dating back a couple of years, do not appear to be in a
position to lodge an application at the present time.

Comments received on the requirement for all Private Hire Operators
and their controllers to complete Barnardos’ safeguarding vulnerable
adults and CSE online training module

One driver who has already sat and passed the Barnardos module also
doubles-up as a Private Hire Operator and questioned whether he would be
required to sit the module again accordingly. Obviously, this is not our
intention — though it was stressed that, if his business expands and he needs
to employ controllers to work for him, then new employees will need to sit the
module.

Comments received on amendments to window tinting criteria

Subsequent to the comments included in the last report, 13 drivers sent in a
letter (attached as Appendix B) objecting to the proposed changes to window
tinting criteria.

The letter appears to misunderstand the proposed changes, citing that it is
unreasonable to expect drivers to change factory fitted glass. This is not what
was agreed at the Licensing Committee in September or consulted on —
members moved to agree that Grandfather rights would be awarded to the
owners of vehicles already licensed with Spelthorne Borough Council for the
remainder of their licensable tenure. The new measures are not retrospective
and it is intended that they will be applied to new vehicles being submitted for
licensing going forward.

Members are however asked to consider whether they think a midway
measure requiring the removal of adhesive tint is appropriate. This would be
far less costly to drivers and easy to rectify; but could be considered unfair on
those drivers as they will potentially bear a cost burden that those with factory
fitted tinted glass will not.

Two further drivers submitted e-mail responses to this item (attached as
Appendix C and D respectively).

Both drivers cite a shortage of vehicles without tinting being available as a
reason for the Council not to adopt this measure, and suggest that doing so
will force them to incur extra costs.

One driver makes specific mention of a hybrid Mitsubishi Outlander, which he
has been intending to buy. He suggests that by imposing new restrictions on
window tinting the Council will be forcing him to acquire a vehicle which is
less environmentally friendly — as he would not be willing to cover the cost of
replacing factory-fitted tinted glass when acquiring a new car.

Page 7



7.7

7.8

8.1

8.2

8.3

10.1

10.2

In response to these comments, Spelthorne’s Licensing department would
refer the Committee to documentation circulated on the evening of the last
meeting (attached to the minutes), which indicate an abundance of vehicles
available that would comply with the new criteria. With reference to the
comments about the Mitsubishi Outlander, this would be a discussion for any
prospective buyer to undertake with the car dealership — if buying a vehicle
new there may be scope to swap out the type of glass the vehicle ships with.

Ultimately, the Committee needs to balance out the interests of the drivers
and choices available to them with the safety of the Private Hire and Hackney
Carriage-using public; the latter being the primary function of the Licensing
Department.

Comments received on the implementation of a joint warranting
scheme, in association with other Surrey authorities

Subsequent to the comments included in the last report from a member of the
trade who felt it was unfair to give other Surrey authorities powers to take
enforcement action when they would do nothing to benefit him, nothing else
supplementary has been received regarding this item.

With reference to this point, questions have arisen since the Committee
meeting in September regarding the breadth of powers required to be
delegated to Licensing Officers employed by other Surrey authorities.
Spelthorne’s Licensing department is currently awaiting further information
from counterparts elsewhere to get some clear direction on exactly how
Spelthorne’s delegations need to be amended.

It will however be to the benefit of the scheme if the wording contained within
the body of the draft policy is left as originally agreed by the Committee, so
that it features when published. This way, at such a time as the scheme of
delegations is amended — Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers will be
aware that they should expect to be subject to action taken wherever they go
in Surrey.

Comments received from the Licensing Team Leader at Guildford
Borough Council

The Licensing Department was grateful to receive input from a colleague
working at Guildford Borough Council, which is attached as Appendix E.

Key items for consideration, along with responses are listed below: -

Suggestion of equalities training as outlined in the draft quidance

It is our intention to wait for the final version of the guidance to be published
before pursuing this further, as it may be that the final version of the guidance
gives a clear steer on which training it deems appropriate. Whilst we
acknowledge that training on a number of items will be a positive for the
licensed trade within the borough, the Council should be reluctant to impose
any requirement on its licensees which might later turn out to be out of sync
with what other authorities are requiring. A BTEC is a big undertaking, and as
such we need to be sure this is the correct measure before requiring
Spelthorne-licensed Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers complete it.

Page 8



10.
10.1

10.2
10.3

Reduction in the age limit for licensable vehicles

This item is the subject of much debate at the moment. Some Surrey
authorities: -

o have shorter age limits,
o have no age limit whatsoever, or
o instead impose restrictions based on emissions standards.

There is not yet an agreed best course of action and there are pros and cons
to each one.

Historically, Spelthorne’s Licensing Committee elected to reduce the age limit
of licensable vehicles from ten years to seven. The trade appealed this
decision and the original age limit was reinstated. Given this chain of events,
at this point in time it therefore seems practical to wait for a solid steer from
central government and / or an agreed best course of action through the
Surrey Licensing Forum. Bearing in mind Spelthorne’s heavy involvement in
the Heathrow expansion and pollution control, it seems logical to give heavy
consideration to emissions going forward.

A reqister of all staff taking bookings for Private Hire Operators should be kept

This has already been covered on page 7 of the draft policy, however Mr
Smith does raise a good point regarding PHOs having their own policy on
employing ex-offenders. | think it would be prudent to give some steer on this
and would perhaps suggest that the Committee agrees to addition of wording
at the top of page 8 outlining that the Council expect PHOs to give regard to
the same Surrey-wide convictions policy that the Council itself uses to
determine applications from prospective drivers with relevant convictions.
Doing otherwise would potentially result in a situation where we can be
confident that licensed drivers are fit and proper; but cannot say the same for
the people passing work to them (who have access to sensitive information
about empty properties, vulnerable individuals etc.).

Options analysis and proposal

Most of the changes detailed in the draft Policy mean that Spelthorne’s
Licensing department will be working in line with the rest of Surrey. This is
important in order to promote consistency and avoid the potential for
prospective applicants to “shop around” authorities in order to find one which
best suits their needs.

The changes also generally fall in line with draft best practice guidance.

Spelthorne’s Licensing department do not consider that any of the comments
or objections to the proposed changes are extenuating or provide good
enough reason to counteract their benefits, especially where most measures
cited are with a view to the benefit of the safety of the public.

Page 9



11.
11.1

12.
121

12.2

12.3

13.
13.1

13.2

Financial implications

There are financial implications for licensees and prospective applicants,
which need to be taken into consideration: -

e PHOs will incur additional costs as a result of needing to provide
criminal record checks for their controllers (a basic check is currently
costed at £20), as well as Barnardos’ safeguarding vulnerable adults
and CSE online training module (charged at £19 per applicant).

e Proposed amendments to window tinting in licensed vehicles will
certainly have a financial impact on those applicants using or looking to
use a vehicle with tinted windows as a taxi or private hire vehicle. It is
important to give this weight, whilst also bearing in mind that the
overriding role of Spelthorne in its function as Licensing authority is to
protect the taxi-using public.

Other considerations

The amendments to the Policy consulted on highlight that Spelthorne
Borough Council is an in-touch organisation, keen to work in a manner
consistent with nearby counterparts in order to promote equality for all
involved with the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licensing trades.

The changes to policy and procedure will help the Licensing department
contribute towards intelligently making full use of information, to assist
members in decision making, and to drive service improvement — delivering a
higher standard for all involved and thus improving the quality of life for
residents in the area.

Ultimately, above all else, the ethos of regulating the Hackney Carriage and
Private Hire trade is to ensure safety and efficiency for the people using its
services. One should be able to assume that any booking made will be
recorded by a reliable and trustworthy individual, carried out by a fit and
proper individual, in a car that is mechanically and aesthetically sound and
suitable for this purpose. The measures proposed should assist in ensuring
this to be the case.

Timetable for implementation

If the Committee is minded to agree the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire
Licensing Policy should be published as consulted on, this can be done at
once.

At such a time as the Policy is published, certain elements will take time to
implement and be subject to timescales, as outlined within the Policy itself: -

e Mandatory subscription to the DBS’ online update service will need to
be rolled out over a three year period, as new applications are
submitted — because it is only possible to subscribe to the online
update service at such a time as one has an application outstanding
with them. On this basis, it is not anticipated that further paper copy
applications will need to be submitted to the DBS beyond September
2022.

Page 10



e Safeguarding vulnerable adults and CSE training for all controllers
working for PHOs in Spelthorne should be achievable within a
relatively short time, and — in accordance with wording added to the
Policy — within six months. In order to allow operators ample time to
address this measure it would be reasonable to expect them to be in a
position to produce certificates for all staff on request by June 2020.

¢ Restrictions on window tinting will need to be rolled out over time, to
allow ‘Grandfather rights’ for licensees to continue using already
licensed vehicles which are fitted with tinted glass.

Appendices:

Appendix A — Spelthorne’s Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy
2019

Appendix B — letter received from multiple drivers regarding window tinting
criteria

Appendix C — e-mail dated 04/10/2019 regarding window tinting criteria
Appendix D — e-mail dated 06/09/2019 regarding window tinting criteria
Appendix E — e-mail from Mike Smith, Licensing Team Leader at Guildford
Borough Council

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A

L e

SPELTHORNE

MEANS BUSINESS

Spelthorne Borough Council
Council Offices

Knowle Green
Staines-upon-Thames
TW18 1XB

Tel: 01784 444202

email: licensing@spelthorne.gov.uk

HACKNEY CARRIAGE
AND
PRIVATE HIRE
LICENSING POLICY
2019

Page 1 of 27




Appendix A

Contents

1 Introduction
1.1 Shared information
1.2 Decision making
2  Applying for a New HC Driver Licence, a PH Driver Licence, or a
PH Operator Licence
2.1 Application form
2.2 Fee
2.3 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Disclosure (Formerly
Criminal Records Bureau (CRB) Disclosure)
2.4 Overseas Criminal History (OCH) Checks (where applicable)
2.5 Driving Licence
2.6 Knowledge Test
2.7 Medical Assessment Form
2.8 Blue Lamp Trust enhanced Tests (where applicable)
2.9 HC applications from existing PH licence holders
2.10 Applications for PH Operator Licences
2.11 Immigration Checks
2.12 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Training
3 Renewing your HC Driver Licence, PH Driver Licence or PH
Operator Licence
4  Problems with your application?
5 Responsibilities of HC Drivers, PH Drivers and PH Operators
5.1 Equality Act 2010
5.2 HC Drivers
5.3 PH.Driver — Standard Licensing Conditions
5.4 PH Operator — Standard Licensing Conditions
5.5 Bespoke Conditions
5.6 Appeals
6 _Applications for HC Vehicle and PH Vehicle Licences
6.1 General
6.2 MOT and Vehicle Inspection Test (VIT)
6.3 Licence Plates
6.4 Seating Capacity of Vehicles
6.5 Tinted Windows
6.6 CCTV (where fitted)
6.7 Cycle carriers and roof racks (where fitted)
6.8 Executive PH Vehicles
6.9 Stretch Limousines
6.10 Period of Licences
7 HC Vehicles and PH Vehicles — Standard Licence Conditions
7.1 Vehicle licence conditions

Page 2 of 27




10

Appendix A

7.2 HC vehicle licence conditions
7.3 Bespoke conditions
7.4 Appeals
Transfer of Entitlement to a Vehicle Licence
Enforcement
9.1 Inspections
9.2 DVLA penalties and driving standards
9.3 Suspension / Revocation of driver licences
9.4 Suspension or revocation of vehicle licences
9.5 Appeals

Acronyms

Appendix 1 — Licensing Authority guide to right to work checks

Appendix 2 — Policy regarding the relevance of.convictions and
other related information

Appendix 3 — Equality Act 2010

Appendix 4 — Byelaws made by Spelthaerne Borough Council with
respect to Hackney Carriages

Appendix 5 — Spelthorne Borough Council’s Penalty Points
Scheme

Page 3 of 27




Appendix A

1 Introduction

Spelthorne Borough Council (‘the Council’) is the Local Licensing Authority for
Hackney Carriage (HC) drivers and vehicles (taxis), in accordance with the Town
and Police Clauses Act 1847 and for Private Hire (PH) drivers, operators and
vehicles (minicabs), in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1976.

This policy was adopted on 23 May 2017 and came into force on 14 July 2017.

This policy aims to protect the safety of the public, whether they are fare paying
passengers or other road users, by ensuring that only fit and proper persons hold
licences to work as HC drivers and/ or PH drivers, or PH operators and that HC and
PH vehicles are safe, roadworthy and fit for purpose, thereby upholding the high
standards expected of the trade.

This policy will be reviewed at regular intervals to ensure that-it.remains current.
However, when and where necessary, minor amendments may be made by
agreement, by the Deputy Chief Executive and the Chairman of.the Licensing
Committee, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

https://spelthorne.qgov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=20765&p=0

1.1 Shared Information

The Council reserves the right to consider information from internal and external
sources as part of its licensing activities and to share information supplied by
applicants with other enforcement badies, e.g. the Audit Commission, the Police etc,
in accordance with the Data Protection'Act 1998 and any statutory code or guidance
made under that Act.

In particular, applicantsifor HC or. PH driver licences should be aware that - in the
event that the Council opts.to refuse an application for or revokes an existing HC or
PHD driver licence for any reason - information will be submitted for inclusion on the
National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN)’s National Register of Refusals and
Revocations{NR3).:Further information about how this information is stored can be
found on the relevant privacy notice, available from the NAFN.

1.2 Decision.making

Day to day decisions on the grant or renewal of licences are delegated to the Senior
Environmental Health Manager (SEHM). In cases of doubt, such as where an
individual’s criminal or medical history casts doubt on their suitability to be licensed,
a report will be presented to a licensing sub-committee who will take the decision as
to whether a person is “fit and proper” to be licensed.

2 Applying for a New HC Driver Licence or a PH Driver Licence
All applicants must submit the following documents when applying for a new licence:

2.1 Application form

Page 4 of 27



https://spelthorne.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=10765&p=0

Appendix A

Failure to complete the appropriate form could result in an application being delayed
or declined.

Knowingly or recklessly making a false declaration or omitting any material
information required when applying for a licence is an offence. Where an applicant
has knowingly made a false statement or declaration the application will normally be
rejected or refused.

2.2 Fee
Failure to pay the full fee could result in an application being delayed or declined.

A list of current fees and charges is published on the Council’s website
www.spelthorne.gov.uk or can be requested from the Licensing department.

2.3 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Disclosure (Formerly.Criminal
Records Bureau (CRB) Disclosure)

Applicants must submit an enhanced DBS disclosure, obtained within the last six
months. The disclosure must show that applicants have been checked against the
“other” workforce list.

Subsequent to submitting an application for an enhanced DBS disclosure, applicants
will need to subscribe tp the DBS’ online update service'so that snapshots of their
criminal history (or lack thereof) can be providediin real-time to the Council’s
Licensing department.

Any Taxi and Private Hire drivers alreadyilicensed by Spelthorne Borough Council
will also need to sign up to the DBS enling update service at the time their next DBS
application is submitted. It is net anticipated that further paper applications will be
submitted on their behalf beyond'September 2022, instead applicants will be
required to provide a check code.which enables LEOs to view their criminal record in
real-time via an online system:

2.4 Overseas Criminal History (OCH) Checks (where applicable)

Applicants who have continuously lived outside the UK for at least one year as an
adult (aged 18 or over), must produce a “Certificate of Good Conduct” by a
competent judicial or administrative authority, for every country of prior domicile. The
Certificate must comprise an extract from the judicial record (or equivalent) and
either record all the applicant’s prior convictions, or confirm their “good conduct”.

Applicants for a Driver Licence must also submit the following:
2.5 Driving Licence

Applicants must produce a current, valid UK driving licence or equivalent issued by a
member state of the European Union, European Economic Area, or Switzerland, that
they have held for at least three years prior to the date of application (excluding any
periods of suspension/ revocation) and showing the applicant’s current address.

In order to allow the Council to monitor what endorsements have been made on a
licence, applicants must provide a licence “check code” obtained via the DVLA’s

Page 5 of 27



http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/

Appendix A

Shared Driving Licence Service (c/o gov.uk) - which will allow Licensing Enforcement
Officers (LEOSs) to obtain a printout of the applicant’'s DVLA record.

2.6 Enhanced Driving Tests for Taxi and Private Hire Drivers

Applicants must produce a certificate confirming that they have passed a Blue Lamp
Trust Enhanced Driving Test for Taxi and Private Hire Drivers, or equivalent. At the
discretion of the Principal Licensing Officer (PLO), where an applicant is to be
employed by a company exclusively using specially-adapted minibus vehicles for the
sole purpose of Blue Badge school runs, a certificate for an alternative, equivalent
test for competence to drive minibuses may be supplied.

2.7 Spelthorne Borough Council Knowledge Tests
All applicants must pass the Council’s: -

e English & Numeracy test
e Licence Conditions test
e Geographical test

There are two versions of both the Licence Conditions.and Geographical tests. The
HC Driver tests require more detailed topographical knowledge, as applicants are
required to describe specific routes between specified places.

Applicants who fail a test must wait for a minimum of‘a two week period before re-
sitting the test and may only sit the test three times in any 12 month period. There is
a charge for re-sitting tests which is reviewed annually.

2.8 Medical Assessment Form

Applicants must submit a “Group.2” Medical Examiner Report, completed by their
GP (or a Doctor working at their registered GP’s practice) who has access to
their full medical records. Reports completed by other Doctors will only be accepted
with good reasenfand where said-Doctor has access to their applicant’s full medical
record.

Applicants must satisfy the Council that they are medically fit to drive and will be
expected.to meet DVLA Group 2 standards.

Medical reports which may indicate that an applicant may not meet the Group 2
Standard will be referred to the Council’s independent medical advisor.

Where a LEO or the Council’s independent medical advisor has reason to believe

that an applicant’s ability to drive may be impaired by a specific medical condition,

the applicant or their GP, or in the case of eyesight requirements, an optician, may
be asked to provide further information at any time following the submission of the
medical assessment form.

The Council may require a new medical assessment, at the licensee’s expense, if a
LEO has reason to believe that a licensee’s medical status may have changed.

Licensees must resubmit medical assessment forms every five years until they are
aged 65. When a licensee reaches the age of 65, annual medical assessment forms

Page 6 of 27




Appendix A

must be submitted. More frequent medicals may also be required if recommended by
the Council’s independent medical advisor.

2.9 HC applications from existing PH licence holders

Existing PH drivers who wish to hold a HC Driver licence can apply to do so at any
time. Applicants must pay the relevant fee and pass both the licence conditions and
topographical tests.

Points imposed under the Council’s Penalty Points Policy will transfer to the new
licence.

2.10 Applications for PH Operator Licences

To be eligible for a PH Operator licence, applicants would normally be expected to
operate from premises located within the Borough.

Virtual Offices for app-based PH Operations

With the increasing popularity of app-based PH Operations there has been an influx
of enquiries from prospective PH Operators who wish toawvork via “virtual offices”. For
the avoidance of confusion, a virtual office is one whichu.need not be manned, from
which any landline is redirected to a head office based elsewhere (often outside of
the borough). In line with legal guidance outlinedun:Button On Taxis and under these
circumstances, the Council is prepared to accept.applications for PH Operator
licences under the proviso that the applicant agrees to supply digital records from
their head office without delay on request from a’'LEO or other authorised officer
working on behalf of the Council. Any failure#o subsequently do so would
immediately call into guestion the suitability of the applicant to hold a PH Operator
licence and would usually trigger.a referral to a Licensing Sub-Committee
accordingly in order for membetrs of the Licensing Committee to determine whether
they deem it appropriate forthe licence to remain in place.

Criminal record checks for PHOs and their controllers

All staff working inia “Coentroller” capacity for a PH Operator (whether paid or unpaid)
will need to be listeden the relevant space on the Council’s application form.
Applicants and'every Controller working under their employ (paid or unpaid) will
need to submit a standard DBS disclosure or a Police National Computer (PNC)
check obtained within the last month. This will need to be done every three years. At
such a timeé as a new Controller begins working for the PH Operator, a standard DBS
disclosure or PNC check dated within the preceding month will be supplied to the
Council accordingly.

If an applicant for a PH Operator licence or one of the Controllers working for them
holds a current HC Driver licence, a PH Driver licence, or has submitted a DBS
enhanced disclosure;- within the last six months, they need not submit a further DBS
check.

Where a standard DBS disclosure or PNC check brings to light convictions, cautions,
reprimands, warnings, charges which do not necessarily lead to conviction or any
other information which may call into guestion the character of an applicant or his/her

Page 7 of 27




Appendix A

Controller(s) — the Council may take this information into account when determining
whether to grant or renew a licence.

Controllers are also required to complete an online training module regarding
safequarding, which is further outlined in point 2.12.

Applicants with licences elsewhere

Applicants who hold a licence with one licensing authority should not automatically
assume that their application will be granted by another. Normally the guidance in
this policy will take precedence over the decision of another authority and each case
will be decided on its own merits.

2.11 Immigration checks

Checks will be undertaken in accordance with guidance issued by the Home Office
in December 2016 (please see attached as Appendix 1), to ensure that an
applicant for a driver or operator licence has the right to live and work.in the UK
before the issue of the licence. Where an applicant has time-limited permission to
work in the UK, the duration of the licence will not exceed the length of time the
applicant has permission to work in the UK.

It is expected that a “fit & proper” Private Hire Operator.will undertake the necessary
checks to ensure that controllers working under.his/her employ have permission to
work in the UK, failure to do so would call inte_question whether they are suitable to
hold said PHO licence and may trigger a referral. to a Licensing Sub-Committee in
order for a panel of members to determine whether the licence should remain in

place.

The Council will not license a Private Hire driver licence to an individual on a Tier 4
(Student) visa unless they are directly employed by an Operator. Proof of
employment and compliance with restrictions must be provided before a licence is
issued. This is_because students on a Tier 4 visa cannot be self-employed.

The Immigration Act 2016 has introduced immigration requirements into licensing
regimes, including taxi and private hire licensing. For all applications after the
commencement date, the Council must be satisfied that an applicant is not
disqualified by their immigration status from holding a licence before being issued a
licence. A licence will lapse if the holder’s lawful leave or permission to work ends.
Immigration offences will be added to the list of grounds on which licences can be
suspended or revoked. It will also be an offence not to return a licence where
revoked on immigration grounds.

Where the Home Office is unable to categorically and decisively clarify an applicant’s
right to remain and work in the UK in the long-term due to ongoing appeals, there is
scope for the Council to issue licences for a shorter time period accordingly. Under
these circumstances, it is not typically expected that a HC or PH driver badge will be
issued for longer than six months at a time — with Home Office checks being carried
out at the request of LEOs before any further extension. The administrative burden
of doing so will be taken into account, and the cost of this will need to be passed on
to the applicant to ensure the Council continues to recovers its costs.

Page 8 of 27




Appendix A

2.12 Safequarding Vulerable Adults & Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Training

All new applicants for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers licences are
required to complete Barnardos’ Safequarding Adult & Child Sexual Exploitation
(CSE) online training module and submit evidence that they have done so, before a
licence is issued.

Additionally, all controllers working under the employ of a Spelthorne-licensed PH
Operator (whether paid or not) will be required to undertake this training module
before commencing work. PH Operators should produce pass certificates to the
Council’s Licensing department as soon as they are obtained. LEOs will periodically
carry out spot-checks and it is expected that certificates for each employee will be
available on site for inspection. Any Operators falling foul of this requirement wilhbe
subject to the issue of penalty points, in accordance with Spelthorne Borough
Council’s Penalty Points Scheme.

Existing PH Operators currently licensed by Spelthorne will be granted a period of
six months to enable them to have all current staff undertake and pass the module.
For the avoidance of confusion, it is therefore anticipated that PH Operators will be in
a position to produce course completion certificates fonall'eontrollers working under
their employ by February 2020.

3 Renewing your HC Driver Licence; PH Driver Licence or PH
Operator Licence

Whilst the Council will endeavour to.send reminders, licensees remain solely
responsible for the renewal of their licence(s).

Applications to renew licences should be lodged at least ten working days before
expiry but will not normally/be accepted more than six weeks before expiry.

The Council would normally require a new application where a licence has expired.

All applicants must submit the following documents when applying to renew their
licence: -

e Application form

o Fee

e Drivinglicence (see above)

e Passport confirming British citizenship, or documentation to prove they have
the right to remain (and work)

e DBS enhanced disclosure (required every three years) for drivers; or a
standard DBS disclosure / Police National Computer (PNC) check (required
every three years) for operators_& their controllers

¢ Medical assessment (required every five years up to the age of 65, and
annually thereafter)

e Data protection mandate, permitting the Council to check the DVLA’s records
(if none current — required every three years)

4 Problems with your application?

Page 9 of 27




Appendix A

4.1 Previous Convictions

When assessing the suitability of an applicant to hold a licence the Council will
consider any previous conviction, caution, court order or similar_(including
reprimands, warnings, charges which do not necessarily lead to conviction or any
other information), from any reliable source, regardless of whether this is ‘spent’
under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974. Prior convictions / cautions do not
necessarily permanently disbar an applicant. Each application is considered on its
individual merits according to:

e the relevance of the offence(s)

¢ the seriousness of the offence(s)

e how long ago the offence(s) were committed
e the date of conviction

e the circumstances

e the sentence imposed by the court

e the applicant’s age at the time of conviction
e whether they show a pattern of offending

e character checks (e.g. personal references)
e any other factors that might be relevant

Spelthorne Borough Council has adopted Surrey-wide guidance in relation to
the consideration of previous convictions. This is attached at Appendix 2_and
applicants with convictions are urged to'eonsult this for insight into whether
or not their criminal history is likely-toupreclude them from attaining a licence.-

The overall offending history must be considered when assessing an applicant’s
suitability to be licensed. A series of offences over a period of time is more likely to
give cause for concern than aniisolated minor conviction. Some discretion can be
afforded if an offence is isolated and there are mitigating circumstances, but the
overriding consideration is'the protection of the public.

Applicants should nete that failure to declare convictions, cautions, court
orders, reprimands, warnings or charges which do not necessarily lead to
convictiomwhen'submitting an application for a licence, renewal of a licence
or during the course of alicence tenure will lead the Council to question
whether or not the applicant can be considered fit and proper. The Council’s
SEHMwould usually reject an application for a new licence under these
circumstances unless there is good reason for the failure, and LEOs will
usually refer an existing licensee to a Licensing Sub-Committee for them to
consider whether the individual can continue to be considered fit and proper.

4.2 Appeals

Any person aggrieved by the refusal of the Council to grant (or renew) any licence
under this policy may appeal to a magistrates’ court.

5 Responsibilities of Combined HC & PH Drivers, PH Drivers and
PH Operators

Page 10 of 27

U
Q
«Q
@
N
N




Appendix A

5.1 Equality Act 2010

The Equality Act 2010 (attached as Appendix 3) places certain duties on HC and
PH Drivers with regards to the transport of wheelchair users and guide dogs. The Act
creates offences for failure to comply unless licensees have obtained an Exemption
Certificate and yellow Exemption Notice to display on their vehicle from the Council.

5.2 Combined HC and PH Drivers

HC Driver licences issued by the Council automatically carry a dual entitlement,
allowing licensees to work as HC and PH drivers.

Holders of HC and PH Driver licences must comply with:

e The Council’s Hackney Carriage Byelaws (see Appendix4) and
e The PH Driver Licensing Conditions (see section 5.3).

5.3 PH Driver — Standard Licensing Conditions
PH drivers must not:

1. Display signs, solicit fares, stand with a vehicle at a HC rank or do anything
that is likely to give the impression that a vehicle is available for hire as if it
were a HC vehicle.

2. Carry more passengers than the number specified on the vehicle licence.

3. Carry any other person during a hiring, without the express permission of the
hirer.

4. Carry a child (below the age of ten'years) in the front passenger seat of the
vehicle.

5. Demand from the hirer a fare in excess of the fare agreed prior to the
commencement of the journey (or as shown on the taximeter where fitted).

6. Smoke intheirvehicle or permit passengers to smoke, at all, at any time. This
also appliesto vaping.

7. Eator drink in the vehicle whilst undertaking a hiring.
8. Play any radio or other sound without the express permission of the hirer.

9. Refuse to carry an assistance dog, unless exempted under Section 37 of the
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 and the vehicle is clearly displaying the
statutory exemption certificate and yellow Exemption Notice from the Council.

PH drivers must:;

1. Notify the Council in writing as soon as possible and in any event within 14
days, of any of the following:

a) change of name and_/ or contact details (including new postal or e-
mail addresses and phone numbers);

b) any iliness or injury affecting fitness to drive;

Page 11 of 27




10.

11.

12.

13.

Appendix A

Notify the Council in writing as soon as possible and in any event within five
working days of a driving licence endorsement, fixed penalty notice, warning,
reprimand, police caution, criminal conviction or other criminal proceedings
which do not necessarily lead to conviction (including their acquittal as part of
a criminal case). In addition, licence holders must inform the council within 3
working days of their arrest for any matter (whether subsequently charged or
not).

Conduct themselves in a civil and orderly manner and comply with the
reasonable requests of the passengers.

Take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons conveyed in
or entering or alighting from the vehicle.

Dress respectably and neatly.

Convey a reasonable quantity of luggage if so required.-by the person hiring
the vehicle.

Give reasonable assistance in loading and unloading the luggage, unless a
medical condition precludes them from being able to.do so, and they are able
to produce a medical certificate or letter from their GP confirming this to be the
case

Give reasonable assistance in removing luggage to or from the entrance of
any place at which he/ she may take up or set down a passenger, unless a
medical condition precludes them from being able to do so, and they are able
to produce a medical certificate or letter from their GP confirming this to be the
case

Attend with the vehicle at.the time and place agreed with the hirer when the
booking was made, unless delayed by some sufficient cause.

Provide to a customer.on request a written receipt of the cost of the journey
undertaken.

On termination.of a hiring, or as soon as is practicable thereafter, search the
vehicle for any lost property left therein and hand anything found to the
Operator.

Allow disabled passengers to be accompanied by their registered assistance

dogs at no extra charge, in accordance with the Disability Discrimination Act
1995.

Assistance dogs are trained to sit in the front of a vehicle with their owner. Any
other animal can be conveyed at the discretion of the driver, but must be
carried in the rear of the vehicle.

Comply with the requirements of the Council’s licensing policy at all times.

If requested to do so for any reason, return their driver badge issued by the
Council forthwith.

Page 12 of 27




Appendix A

The holder of a Spelthorne PH driver licence can only work in a PH vehicle
licensed by Spelthorne Borough Council, for a person or company holding a
Spelthorne PH operator’s licence.

5.4 PH Operator — Standard Licensing Conditions
PH Operators must not:

1. Use the words ‘Taxi’ or ‘Cab’, whether in the singular or plural and whether they
form part of another word or not, in connection with their PH business.

PH Operators must:
Keep (in permanent and easily legible form) a record of the following:

1. Particulars of every booking taken, regardless of whether it was made with the
hirer or undertaken at the request of another operator,.including:

a) date and time of the booking;

b) date and time of commencement of the journey;

c) name of the hirer;

d) place(s) at which the passenger(s) was/ were collected;

e) place(s) at which the passenger(s) was/ were set down;

f) PH vehicle licence number;

g) full name and licence number of the PH driver;

h) fare charged and whether or not calculated by a meter.
2. Particulars of any vehicle operated by the licensee:

a) make and model;

b) registration mark;

c) PH vehicle licence number;

d) PH vehicle licence expiry date;

e) proprietor of the vehicle;

f) date and brief description of all works of modification and major works of
maintenance or repair carried out to the vehicle.

3. Miscellaneous:
a) lost property;

b) date and time found;

Page 13 of 27




Appendix A

c) vehicle in which it was found;
d) name of hirer.

Records may be kept as part of a computerised record keeping system and shall be
retained and kept available for inspection by an authorised officer for a minimum
period of 12 months.

PH Operators must also:

4. Notify the Council in writing as soon as possible and in any event within 14
days, of any material change in their operational circumstances, including:

a) change of name and / address, e-mail address or phone number;

b) change of the nature of the business carried on by him/ her;
c) change of the composition of the firm, if a partnership;
d) the address of any secondary office(s) opened by the PH Operator;

e) details of any licensed driver whose services are dispensed with by the
operator, where the circumstances of the driver’s dismissal relate to his/her
unsatisfactory conduct;

f) any other change in the information given by the Operator to the Council at
the time of granting the current licence.

5. Notify the Council in writing as seon as possible and in any event within five
working days of-cautions, court orders, reprimands, warnings or charges
which do not necessarily.lead to_conviction against the PH Operator or their
business partner;_and within three days of convictions.

6. Take all reasonable steps to fulfil each and every booking accepted, punctually
at the agreed time.

7. Ensure thatany part of the premises provided for the use of the public to make
bookings:is:

a) kept clean;
b) adequately heated and ventilated;
¢) provided with adequate seating facilities;

d) provided with a notice indicating that the service provided is in respect of
pre-booked journeys only.

8. Ensure that a copy of their licence is prominently displayed where members of
the public can read it.

9. Ensure that they comply with all requirements set out by the Immigration Act
2016, keeping copies of all documentation checked. This paperwork will be
kept securely on site and available for inspection at all times if requested by the
authorities.

Page 14 of 27




Appendix A

10. Ensure that any telephone facilities and radio equipment provided are
maintained in a sound condition, and that any defects are repaired promptly.

11. Notify the Council in writing within seven days of details of any conviction or
fixed penalty notice or formal caution imposed on him/ her.

12. At all times, comply with the requirements of the Council’s policy on the
licensing of PH Operators.

The holder of a Spelthorne PH operator licence can only supply private hire work
to an individual who holds a current Spelthorne PH driver licence and usés a,PH
vehicle licensed by Spelthorne Borough Council, except as allowed byssub:
contract rules introduced by the Deregulation Act 2015*.

* In section 55A, subsection (1) allows an operator who accepts a booking for a-private hire vehicle to sub-
contract it to four types of operator - (a) an operator licensed and located.in the same district as the initial
operator; (b) an operator licensed and located in a different district from the initial operator (a different district
but one which is still governed by the same legislation — in practice this means a district in England or Wales
but outside London or Plymouth); (c) an operator licensed and located.in London;.or (d) a person located in
Scotland.

5.5 Bespoke Conditions

Notwithstanding the standard conditions above, the Council reserves the right to
impose further conditions on any driver or operator licence where it considers this
appropriate.

5.6 Appeals

Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to the grant of a driver or operator
licence may appeal to a magistrates’ court.

6 Applications for.HC Vehicle and PH Vehicle Licences

Applicants.must submit the following documents when applying for a new vehicle
licence:

1. Application form;
2. Fee;

3. Valid certificate of insurance for the vehicle, insuring it for use as a HC and/ or
PH Vehicle on the day of application;

4. Vehicle Registration Document (log book);

5. MOT certificate, where the period since the date of first registration of a vehicle
is 1+ year. The certificate must have been issued in the 14 days prior to the
date of application;

Page 15 of 27




Appendix A

6. Letter from the registered keeper of the vehicle consenting to the vehicle being
licensed (if applicable);

7. The following documents, where vehicles have been altered or converted since
original manufacture:

e Wheelchair Accessible Vehicles — VOSA Certificate M1
e Stretch Limousines — VOSA SVA Certificate
¢ Any other relevant conversion document.

Applications not accompanied by the appropriate documentation will usually be
declined.

6.1 General
Vehicles that are the subject of licensing applications must:

1. Not be a London LTI, “Fairway”, “Metrocab” or similar style of vehicle;
2. Not be licensed with Transport For London (TFL), or any other authority;

3. Not be over ten years old. The latest that a licence can be issued for a full year
is when it is nine years old.

Vehicles specially adapted to carry passengers who are wheel chair bound
may continue to be licensed up to twelve years of age, subject to full
compliance with licence conditions.

In_exceptional circumstanees, there is scope for age limitations to be waived —
provided a vehicle: -

e has a lower than average mileage;

e is aesthetically in immaculate condition;

e can bepresented with a full service history; and

e is free of. damp or other odours which may cause discomfort.

Applicants wishing to have their vehicle licensed beyond the age limit should
request sight of the full guidelines used to determine whether a vehicle meets
the“exeeption circumstances” requirement and prepare a written request for
consideration by the PLO accordingly.

It should be noted that a decision will be made based on the condition of the
vehicle as presented to Officers, and is down to the discretion of those
involved with administrating the application. No assumption should be made
that a vehicle will be licensed beyond the age limits specified above.

Generally-speaking, whilst the Council acknowledges there is a cost-
implication involved in doing so, in order to ensure that emissions
remain manageable it encourages licensees to replace vehicles within
the age limits specified above.

Page 16 of 27




Appendix A

4. Normally have a minimum of 4 passenger doors, excluding any tailgate;

5. Have a minimum engine capacity of 1300cc;
6. Have a solid roof, which may include a solid sunroof.

7. Not have sideways facing seats and all will comply with the current seatbelt
regulations;

8. Have three anchorage points for each seatbelt;
9. Have an interior release handle on all passenger exit doors;

10. Have an external mirror on each side of the vehicle which can be used as a
functional driving mirror by the driver;

11. Have a suitable and accessible dry powder fire extinguisher of not less than
1kg in capacity;

12. Carry a first aid kit. This must be kept in such a'position as ta be readily
available to passengers for immediate use in as required;

13. Not display or carry any signs (except optional ‘No smoking’ sign[s]), notices,
advertisements, plates, numbers, letters, figures, symbols or emblems
whatsoever, on, in or from the vehicle, except for the name and telephone
number of an operator — which may be displayed securely on the side doors or
bonnet of the vehicle on a plate or sign.written, the characters of which must
not be more than 4 inches (10ecm) in.height and such lettering shall not be
illuminated. Any signs must not obscure the driver’s vision in any direction.

14. Be right hand drive only, except for stretch limousines;

15. Only be altered or.converted by an appropriately qualified installer or vehicle
manufacturer (where applicable).

6.2 MOT and Vehicle Inspection Test (VIT)
Vehicles are required to pass a standard MOT test and the Council’s VIT.

MOT Testing must be done annually for vehicles over the age of one year and six-
monthly for vehicles over the age of five years.

VIT tests will be undertaken annually at the Council Offices.

Applicants must include an MOT certificate with their application form, which is the
result of a test carried out in the 14 days prior to the date of application. Checks will
be undertaken from time to time and penalty points will be awarded for failure to
meet the timescales for MOTSs to be conducted.

LEOs will consider MOT advisories and decide a course of action on a case by case
basis. Where the MOT indicates that they may be defective, applicants would
normally be required to replace tyres or repair to British Standard BS AU 159 (with
evidence of this to be provided).

Page 17 of 27




Appendix A

At the discretion of LEOs, advisories on MOTs will usually be required to be fixed
within one month of the MOT - with evidence to this effect to be provided. Failure to
comply with this requirement would usually result in the issue of penalty points to a
driver's hackney carriage or private hire driver licence_and in some cases in the
suspension of the vehicle licence (see section 9.4).

Other issues, including those relating to aesthetics, will be taken on a case-by-case
basis and LEOs may at their discretion request that applicants have faults remedied
within a reasonable time frame in order to promote a certain standard of vehicle for
consumption by the HC and PH using public.

6.3 Licence Plates

The Council shall determine the wording, size and manner of display of licence
plates in accordance with the requirements of current legislation.

6.4 Seating Capacity of Vehicles

The Council will determine the number of persons a vehicle is licensed to carry in the
following way:

a) Where a vehicle provides separate seats for each person, the vehicle shall be
licensed to carry one person for each separate seat provided — subject to them
meeting the Council’s minimum size requirements: -

i) 410 mm wide;

i) The distance between the rear of the forward seat or dashboard and the
front face of the passenger seat;should measure a minimum of 660 mm per
passenger.

Consideration will also be given to the amount of headroom available, ingress
and egress from a practical point of view (as well in terms of safety), and also

the materials from which the seat is made. Applicants should be mindful that it
will not always be possible for the Council to issue a licence permitting use of

every seat in.a vehicle.

A deéision asito whether a seat will be licensed is at the discretion of the LEO
InSpecting the vehicle. The primary consideration will be the safety and comfort
of the travelling public;

b) Where the vehicle is fitted with continuous seats, the vehicle shall be licensed
to carry one person for each complete length of 410 mm measured in a straight
line lengthwise across the front of such a seat, to a maximum not exceeding the
number of seatbelts fitted. The distance between the rear of the forward seat or
dashboard and the front face of the passenger seat must measure a minimum
of 660 mm per passenger;

c) Where the vehicle is fitted with continuous seats and with arms to separate the
seating spaces, the arms shall be ignored in measuring the seat, if the arms

Page 18 of 27




Appendix A

can be folded back or otherwise put out of use, to a maximum not exceeding
the number of seatbelts fitted.

The Council reserves the right to reconsider the number of passengers for
which a vehicleis licensed, if on reflection LEOs believe that a vehicle is
unsuitable to carry the number of passengers specified on a previously issued
licence. Some MPVs may have historically been issued for a certain number of
passengers when in actuality they are designed for and more suitable of
carrying young children. A seat licensed for use to carry passengers for hire
and reward should be suitable to carry an average sized adult. This means that
someone older and / or less able should be able to easily access the seat, be
provided with a large enough seat (as detailed above) and also have'both
adequate leq and headroom for an average sized adult.

6.5 Tinted Windows

The Road Vehicles (Construction & Use) Reqgulations 1986 as amended specifies
the minimum levels of light that must pass through the windscréenand front side
windows. For vehicles first used on or after 1 April 1985, the.light'transmitted through
the windscreen must be 75% and 70% through the front side windows.

The licensing authority recognises that many manufacturers fit tinted windows as
standard original fittings, as either ‘dark tint’ or:'light tint'.

There is a distinct difference between standard tinted windows which meet the legal
requirements and the ‘dark tint’ - commonly known as ‘privacy glass’, which is much
darker and lets a minimum of light throughpmaking it very difficult to see into the
vehicle.

To address public safety coneerns around the use of ‘privacy’ glass and to allow as
wide a range of vehicles.as possible to be used by the Hackney Carriage and Private
Hire trades, the following'conditions regarding tinting apply to licensed vehicle
windows:-

(a) All'rear windows must allow at least 70% of light to be transmitted
through.them.

(b) Nowehicle shall be fitted with any form of additional film to darken or
tint the windows, on any part of the vehicle.

C) Front side windows and the front windscreen must meet the
requirements of the Road Vehicles (Construction & Use) Requlations
1986, as detailed above.

(e) Privacy glass shall only be acceptable: -

i) where fitted to plate exempt vehicles, as applied for in
accordance with section 6.8 of this policy.

i) where good reason is given for its use (for example, in the case
of disabled-access school-run vehicles, where contracted clients
may be liable to light-triggered seizures). What is considered

Page 19 of 27




Appendix A

“good reason” will be at the discretion of LEOs in conjunction
with the PLO.

(f) Any glass which has been replaced must be safety glass and must
comply with The Road Vehicles (Construction and Use) Requlations
1986.

Grandfather rights for vehicles licensed before September 2019

In order to avoid unnecessary expense being caused to the trade through this policy,
any vehicles licensed before September 2019 which currently have factory fitted
privacy glass will be allowed to continue to be licensed on a yearly basis until. such
time as the vehicle is replaced or changes ownership (by change of ownership this
includes the reqular use of the vehicle by another driver).

Conversely however, for the avoidance of confusion - licensees:will not be‘permitted
to install tinted glass in these vehicles.

It is assumed that this grace period will allow time fordrivers to make other
arrangements to accommodate existing customers whouprefer or require use of
vehicles with privacy glass.

6.6 CCTV (where fitted)

Where CCTV is fitted to a licensed vehicle,sand'in use, it must:

a) comply with the Information Commissioner’s data protection requirements and
Codes of Practice;

b) be capable of recording date, time.and vehicle identification, such features to
be activated at all times when in use;

c) be capable of having recorded material downloaded to another storage device
for reviewing;

d) be kept in.good working order at all times;
e) enable recordings to be made available to LEOs or the Police on request.
6.7 Cycle carriers and roof racks (where fitted)

Any cycle carriers or roof racks must be fitted and used in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions (including maximum load weight).

6.8 Executive PH Vehicles

Applications to register PH vehicles as Executive PH (EPH) vehicles will be
considered if:

e A minimum of 90% of work is undertaken for businesses (not schools or
other authorities) with an account with the operator, demonstrable by
reference to a minimum of three month’s work records or, in the case of new
applicants, a letter from an employer;

Page 20 of 27




Appendix A

e The vehicle befits executive status — typically being larger in size than a large
family car, in excellent condition, usually providing luxurious features beyond
what might be considered by most as necessity.

An EPH vehicle will be exempt from the tinted window requirements of this policy
(section 6.5 above).

Applications for Executive Status shall be determined at the Council’s discretion.

Instead of being issued a PH vehicle licence plate, drivers of EPH vehicles will
instead be issued a plate display exemption certificate, which they will be required to
carry with them at all times._For this reason, it is not anticipated that EPH status will
be given to Private Hire drivers carrying out work which falls outside the usual remit
of an individual typically referred to as a “Chauffeur”. In the casewf Private Hire
vehicles being used to carry out school runs, it is imperative that children, their
parents and schools are able to easily identify a vehicle as being licensed.

6.9 Stretch Limousines

Vehicles which have been adapted to carry more passengers than originally
intended are referred to as stretch limousines. Where there are eight or fewer
passenger seats, or their equivalent where bench-seats are provided, then the
vehicle must be licensed.

6.10 Period of Licences

HC and PH driver licences can be issued for one or three years. The Government
anticipates that most will be issued for three years. In some cases it may be
necessary to issue a driver’s licence for.a shorter period, for example to give the
driver an opportunity to have a medical examination or provide other outstanding
documentation. In such cases the licence will be extended on production of the
outstanding documentation to one or three years as appropriate. This would not
normally incur an-additional charge but may if the fault lies with the driver and the
matter is within the driver’s control.

PH operator licences can be issued for one or five years. The Government
anticipates thatmost will be issued for five years.

HC and PH vehicle licences can be issued for a maximum of one year.
7 HC Vehicles and PH Vehicles — Standard Licence Conditions

7.1 The following conditions will normally apply to all licensed vehicles:

1. The vehicle shall at all times be maintained in sound, roadworthy,
mechanically sound condition and serviced according to the manufacturer’s
recommendations.

2. No alteration to the manufacturer’s specification for the vehicle shall be carried
out except with the written approval of the Council.

3. Interior lighting shall be provided and maintained in working order such that it
illuminates the passenger area.

Page 21 of 27




Appendix A

4. The seats are properly cushioned or covered.
5. The floor is provided with proper carpet, mat or other suitable covering.

6. The exterior of the vehicle shall be kept clean at all times. The interior of the
vehicle (including luggage spaces) shall be kept clean and free from rubbish
at all times.

7. The vehicle must at all times comply with one of the following:

a) Carry a spare wheel, capable of imnmediate use, together with adequate
tools to effect changing a wheel; or

b) Carry a space saver spare wheel, capable of immediate use, together with
adequate tools to effect changing a wheel. When space saver spare wheels
are used, a licensee may complete their journey but must not undertake any
further hiring until the punctured wheel has been repaired and refitted or else
replaced; or

c) Carry and maintain in good working order, the manufacturer’s standard
issue repair and inflation equipment for that vehicle. Where a repair and
inflation facility is used, a licensee may complete their journey but must not
undertake any further hiring until the punctured wheel has been repaired and
refitted or else replaced, and the manufacturer’s repair and inflation facility
has been replaced; or

d) Have runflat tyres fitted. Where a runflat tyre becomes punctured, as soon
as this comes to the attention of thelicensee, they may complete their journey
but must not undertake any further hiring until the punctured wheel has been
repaired and refitted or else replaced.

8. Newly licensed vehicles must conform to the requirements of section 6.5 —
Tinted Windows. However, vehicles licensed before 14 July 2017 are exempt
from this condition for.as long as they remain continuously licensed by the
Council.

9. All fuel carried by the vehicle shall be contained within permanently secured
fuel tanks. Spare fuel containers must not be carried at any time whether or
not they are empty.

10. The driver of a licensed vehicle shall notify the Council in writing as soon as
possible, and in any event, within 14 days of any change of name or address.

11. Where CCTV is fitted to a licensed vehicle then the requirements set out at
section 6.6 shall apply.

7.2 Additional Standard Conditions — Hackney Carriage Vehicles

1. A licensee shall ensure that any other person permitted to drive the licensed
vehicle holds a HC Driver licence issued by the Council.

Page 22 of 27




Appendix A

. The taximeter fitted to the vehicle shall be adjusted to record fares in
accordance with the Council’s tariff of fares and must be tested at intervals not
exceeding 3 years.

. Meters must comply with Directive 2004/22/EC of the European Parliament on
measuring instruments as implemented into UK law by The Measuring
Instruments (Taximeters) Regulations 2006, be programmed to calendar
control and be sealed by lead or plastic signs to meet the required minimum
standard.

. The vehicle shall have an internally illuminated roof sign bearing the word
“TAXI” on the front in letters which are not less than 50 mm height. This sign
shall be kept illuminated when the vehicle is plying for hire.

. The vehicle shall display an internally illuminated sign saying “For Hire” which
shall be located at the front of the vehicle where it can be seen from the
outside front of the vehicle. This sign shall remain illuminated at all time whilst
the vehicle is available for hire.

. Vehicle Licence Plates

Licence plates are supplied by the Council-and must be securely fixed to the
vehicle in the following locations:

e 1 large plate — rear exterior;
e 1 plate — internal, facing inwards displayed so that passengers can easily
read it.

Licence plates must be kept cleanand clearly displayed on the licensed
vehicle at all times, whether or not it is being used as such. Once affixed, a
licence plate must not obscure the registration plate.

Licence plates remain the property of the Council and must be returned when
the vehicle is no longer licensed or when the vehicle licence has been
suspended.

. Licensees are responsible for ensuring that only holders of the appropriate
private hire or hackney carriage driver licence issued by the Council are
allowed to drive their licensed vehicle(s) and that the person is insured for
public or private hire as appropriate.

7.3 Bespoke Conditions

Notwithstanding the standard conditions above, the Council reserves the right to
impose further conditions on any vehicle licence where it considers this appropriate.

7.4 Appeals

Any person aggrieved by any conditions attached to the grant of a vehicle licence
may appeal to a magistrates’ court.

8 Transfer of Entitlement to a Vehicle Licence

Page 23 of 27




Appendix A

A licence issued in respect of a vehicle can be temporarily or permanently
transferred to another vehicle in the event of an accident, mechanical failure or theft.

The Council will issue a new vehicle licence to the licensee on the following terms:
1. Payment of the relevant fee;
2. Submission of a fully completed application form;

3. Surrender of the original HC / PH vehicle licence and (where possible)
identification plates to the Council;

4. The new vehicle must comply with all relevant requirements of this Policy;

5. The new HC / PH licence will expire on the same date as the cancelled vehicle
licence.

6. If the original vehicle is to be used again, following repair, then a further transfer
application needs to be made as it will no longer be licensed.

9 Enforcement

Failure to comply with legislative requirements is an offence. In determining what
enforcement action to pursue in respect of offences, regard will be had to the
individual circumstances, as well as the Council’'s enforcement policies and other
guidance, such as the Crown Prosecutor’s Code of Practice. Enforcement may
include prosecution of offenders where appropriate and/ or imposition of penalty
points under the Council’'s Penalty Points Scheme. As part of our enforcement of the
legislation, the Council will, when appropriate, carry out test purchases of journeys.
We will also make use of public CCTV monitoring in order to detect offences under
the legislation.

Under section 101 of the'Loeal Government Act 1972, a local authority can make
arrangements for.other local authorities to discharge its functions. Having done so,
the Council may continue to discharge and control those functions. If the Council
arranges for other.authorities within a flexible warranting scheme to carry out its
Licensing functions, it may continue to exercise most of those functions itself. What
this means is that:

e Speltharne-licensed HC and PH drivers should be aware that they may be
liable to enforcement action by Officers from other Surrey local authorities
when working in a capacity outside of Spelthorne Borough Council’s
geographical area; and

e HC and PH drivers licensed by other authorities in Surrey may also be subject
to enforcement work carried out by Spelthorne Borough Council’s authorised
Licensing Enforcement Officers.

9.1 Inspections

The Council reserves the right to carry out the following inspections with or without
warning to ensure compliance with licence conditions and relevant legislation
(including Byelaws).

Page 24 of 27

U
Q
(@)
@
w
(o))




Appendix A

¢ Private Hire Operators — records/ premises;
e Hackney Carriage Drivers — HC vehicles;
e Private Hire Drivers — PH vehicles.

Routine inspections will be carried out primarily in accordance with a risk-based
system and wherever possible, vehicles and documentation will be inspected at the
same time.

9.2 DVLA Penalties and driving standards

Licensees who accumulate nine or more points on their driving licence must notify
the Council immediately, after which they will be required to pass the Blue Lamp
Trust (or equivalent) test within three months of notification and report the result.to
the Council within one month of the test date. Failure to do so will result in
consideration of further sanctions.

A second accumulation of nine points will normally trigger the referral of'a report to a
licensing sub-committee, in order for them to consider further sanctions - including
possible suspension or revocation.

9.3 Suspension / Revocation of driver licences

9.3.1 Person not being fit and proper to hold a licence (including medical
grounds)

Where a LEO has a reasonable belief that any HC or PH driver or PH operator is
not a “fit and proper” person to hold a licence and/or in the interests of public
safety, the Council may revoke that licence.

Before a decision to revoke a licence is taken, the Council will usually contact the
licensee to invite them to attend a hearing with a Licensing Sub-Committee. The
Council will provide the licensee with a full agenda and report in advance of the
meeting, so that they are able to respond on the day. However, representations
concerning the effect of revocation on a licensee’s personal circumstances e.g.
unemployment, loss.of income, hardship etc will not be taken into account.

The Council reserves the right to determine cases in the absence of licensees
who.cannot be contacted or who do not attend their hearing.

When the hearing is complete, the Licensing Sub-Committee will review the
evidence and determine the appropriate sanction. The licensee will then be
notified in writing and full reasons given. Revocation can be immediate and a
licence must be surrendered on demand.

Suspensions cannot lawfully be issued as a punitive measure and will typically be
issued for medical reasons, until the Council is in receipt of appropriate
documentation as requested by the Council’s independent medical advisor, or in
some cases for a specified fixed period in accordance with medical guidance (for
example, in accordance with current group 2 guidance: one year following a
Stroke or TIA).

Page 25 of 27




Appendix A

In certain circumstances (i.e. where there is an imminent danger in allowing a
driver to continue to work), a licence may be immediately suspended or revoked.
This will usually be the case for suspensions issued on medical grounds. Such
decisions will be made by the Senior Environmental Health Manager, in
conjunction with the Chairman of the Licensing Committee.

9.3.2 Resulting from an accumulation of penalty points
See the Council’s Penalty Points Policy.
9.3.3 Re-applying for a licence after suspension / revocation

Licensees can apply for the return of their licence when a suspension period has
elapsed. Expired time during the suspension period will not be re-credited.

In terms of revocations, consideration will need to be given ta the reasons for and
the period which has elapsed since revocation. Usually the Council.will not grant a
new licence until at least 12 months has elapsed, or at least five years from the
date of any subsequent revocation. Where a revocation is theresult of
convictions, cautions, reprimands, warnings, charges which“do not necessarily
lead to conviction or any other information which'may eall’into guestion the
character of an applicant, the Surrey-wide Policy.regarding the relevance of
convictions and other related information. (attached as Appendix 2) will be
referenced.

-Where an existing licensee has their DVLA driving licence suspended or revoked,
their Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver licence shall normally also be
revoked with immediate effect. Where a licence is revoked there will be no refund
of any fee. Licensees whose licences are revoked in this manner will not normally
be permitted to re-apply until 12 months has elapsed from the date of revocation.

9.4 Suspension or revocation of vehicle licences
The following may result in a licence suspension and/ or revocation:

¢ where aLEO.is not satisfied that any HC or PH vehicle is fit for use as such;

e where the licensee or operator has committed an offence under Part Il of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 or has not complied with
the Act;

e any other reasonable cause as determined by the Council.

9.5 Appeals

Any licensee aggrieved by the suspension or revocation of their licence may appeal
to the Magistrates’ Court.

10. Acronyms
PH — Private Hire

Page 26 of 27

U
Q
(@)
(q)]
w
op




HC — Hackney Carriage

DBS — Disclosure and Barring Service

OCH — Overseas Criminal History

DVLA — Driver and Vehicle Licensing Agency
PNC — Police National Computer

VOSA - Vehicle and Operator Services Agency
PNC — Police National Computer

VSA — Vehicle and Operator Services Agency
LTI — London Taxi

TFL — Transport for London

VIT — Vehicle Inspection Test

EPH — Executive Private Hire (exempt from displaying a plate) vehicles

NAFN — National Anti Fraud Network

NR3 — National Register of Refusals and Revecations

SEHM — Senior Environmental Health Manager

PLO — Principal Licensing Officer

LEO — Licensing Enforcement Qfficer

Appendix A

Page 27 of 27




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
To:
Rob Thomas
Principal Licensing Officer

Spelthome Borough Council

Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-Upon-Thames
TWI18 1XB

Dear Sir,

Re: Clause regarding window tinting requirements on licenced taxis.

On behalf of all Spelthorne Taxi and Private Hire drivers we would like to object to
the way this clause is being interpreted and implemented.

Most of the vehicles are fitted with standard glass from factory as can be found on
other vehicles of the same make and model. The drivers themselves have not
modified the vehicles or applied anything that would alter the tint of the glass.

It is unreasonable and impossible for drivers to be expected to change the glass that
has been fitted to the vehicle by the manufacturer from the factory.

If there are any drivers who have modified their vehicles and used aftermarket
tinting services then these vehicles can be asked to remove the material applied to
tint the glass.

In suminary we object to the
vehicle manufacturer will be
financially.

expectation th_at glass fitted from factory by the
changed as this is not feasible practically or

Furthermore changing

_ or modifyin :
specification will inval ying any part of the vehicle

_ . from facto
idate the insurance and may comproi A

nise safety.
Yours Sincerely,

All Speithome Taxi Drivers

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix C
Thomas, Robert

From:

Sent: 04 October 2019 00:03

To: Thomas, Robert

Subject: Re: Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy Consultation

Dear Mr Thomas Robert,

I m writing to express my opposition regarding the amendment regarding changes to requirements
regarding window tinting in licensed vehicles.

My car windows are not tinted but the market is proposing more vehicles with tinted windows, as such, if |
plan to buy a car, surely the options given will be cars with tinted windows, and to suit the licence
requirements an extra cost will occur, which make it difficult to licenced private and public hire to sustain.
| look forward to hearing from you.

Yours Sincerely

Page 43




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix D

Thomas, Robert

From:

Sent: 06 September 2019 16:31

To: Thomas, Robert

Subject: RE: Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy Consultation

Good afternoon

So in detail please, what changes are being proposed in terms of window tinting?

Going forward, are vehicles with tinted windows done by the manufactures themselves banned?

The reason | ask this question is because my car is coming to the end of its 10 year term and I’'m seeking a Mitsubishi
Qutlander PHEV (Hybride) vehicle.

The type of vehicle is cleaner for the environment and economical for me as a driver. This vehicle is 50% run from
electric and saving costs for me as a driver.

This type of vehicle is manufactured from the dealer with tinted windows and | have never seen one without it.
This type of vehicle is becoming a very popular choice with Private Hire drivers all around London. And the
surrounding areas.

Based on what this type of vehicle has to offer a driver, customers and the environment i believe banning this type
because of its tinted windows is a major step back for Spelthorne Council because the Mitsubishi Outlander has
huge advantages then other vehicles. For drivers, customers and the environment.

Local authorities, governments and nations all over the world are on a mission to cut green house gases and
pollution to 0% by 2050. The United Kingdom especially.

The Ukrainian Government, one out of many nations have started a scheme where national police force will be only
using the Outlander PHEV.

If this is the case and this type of vehicle is banned due to tinted windows or the council rules that cars must be
without tinted window | do not believe any driver will pay to have the tint remove from there preferred choice of
vehicle witch results in drivers not buying a vehicle with tinted windows. It will just make Spelthorne Borough un
competitive with other near by areas.

And | for one will have saved money for the past year for nothing and | maybe forced to choice a less environmently
and cost effective vehicle as a result.

Kind regards

Page 45




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix E

Thomas, Robert

From: Mike Smith

Sent: 20 September 2019 15:18

To: Thomas, Robert

Subject: RE: Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy Consultation [UNC]
Hi Rob,

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on Runnymede’s draft taxi policy.
I do have a couple of comments:

As you are aware, following the government response to the Task and Finish Group the government also released its
draft s.177 Guidance. Both documents mention ‘national minimum standards’ and whilst there is no indication as to
what these are or when they may be required, it is encouraging to see that Runnymede and other authorities are
moving forward to raise standards. My only concern is that if the national minimum standards (as of yet to be
determined) require something different, that you will be required to go through this process again.

With regards to your main proposals:

Drivers:

You are proposing an English test, and safeguarding course. There does not appear to be any proposal for drivers to
complete Equalities training as recommended by the draft s.177 guidance. For this reason, | would recommend that
you require a BTEC in The Introduction of the Role of the Professional Taxi and Private Hire Driver (details on our
website). This would cover the English, knowledge of legislation and equality issues, amongst other things.

Vehicles:

Your vehicle standards appear to allow licensing of vehicles up to 10 years old. There appears to be no age limit for
new vehicles, possibly meaning that a new vehicle could be up to 9 years old. In line with some of the other Surrey
Authorities, | would recommend a maximum age limit of licensed vehicles to keep prevent the trade from initially
licensing older vehicles, which may have implications for maintenance and Air quality.

The draft 5.188 guidance discussed the use of CCTV and recommends that Councils consider mandating this for
passenger and driver safety. Runnymede does not mention this, and only mentions CCTV ‘where fitted’. |
recommend that CCTV should be fitted in all licensed vehicles. This is not just for the safety of passengers, but also
in the interests of safety for drivers.

Operators:

The s.177 Guidance also says that Licensing authorities should be satisfied that PHV operators can demonstrate that
all staff that have contact with the public and/or oversee the dispatching of vehicles do not pose a risk to the public.
Licensing authorities should request that, as a condition of granting an operator licence, a register of all staff that
will take bookings or dispatch vehicles is kept. The operator should be required to evidence that they have had sight
of a Basic DBS check on all individuals listed and produce a policy on employing ex-offenders.

The Guidance also recommends that Operators and their staff should receive similar training to that of drivers
around safeguarding and equalities awareness, and that the use of a driver who holds a Public Carriage Vehicle
(PCV) licence and the use of a public service vehicle (PSV) such as a minibus to undertake a PHV booking should not
be permitted as a condition of the PHV operator’s licence. | see that you have incorporated most of these measures.

I hope that this is of assistance.

Regards...Mike

Page 47




This page is intentionally left blank



Work and Decisions of Licensing Sub-Committees
4 September 2019 to 20 November 2019

LICENSING ACT 2003

Date Plraemlses/ Application for Members Decision Appeals
erson
Sensations Leisure Ltd, R.W. Sider BEM .
3 October 2019 Unit 5 Thames Edge Premises Licence C. Barratt RefL.Js.ed to grant. Full defails in None lodged
> Decision Notice. to date.
Clarence Street Staines |.J. Beardsmore

61 abed

G way| epuaby


https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s23641/Decision%20Notice%20-%20Sensations%20Leisure%20Ltd%20-%20Unit%205%20Thames%20Edge%20Court.pdf
https://democracy.spelthorne.gov.uk/documents/s23641/Decision%20Notice%20-%20Sensations%20Leisure%20Ltd%20-%20Unit%205%20Thames%20Edge%20Court.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Review of the Taxi Licensing Policy
	App A - draft policy
	App B - letter from taxi drivers
	App C - e-mail from HCD redacted
	App D - e-mail from PHD redacted
	App E - e-mail from MS

	5 Work and Decisions of Licensing Sub-Committees



